
 

Eastleigh House 
Upper Market Street 
Eastleigh SO50 9YN 

 
 

Tuesday, 21 June 2022 
 
 

BISHOPSTOKE, FAIR OAK AND HORTON HEATH LOCAL AREA 
COMMITTEE 

will meet on 
Wednesday, 29 June 2022 

beginning at 
7:00 pm 

in the 
Bishopstoke Guides HQ, West Drive, SO50 6FL 

(Turn into West Drive from Sedgwick Road and take the first left into the alleyway) 

 
 
TO: Councillor Louise Parker-Jones (Chair) 
 Councillor Ray Dean (Vice-Chair) 
  

Councillor Steven Broomfield 
Councillor Nicholas Couldrey 
 

Councillor Michelle Marsh 
Councillor Gin Tidridge 
 

 
 

Staff Contacts: Laura Johnston, Senior Democratic Services Officer;  Tel:  023 
8068 8041; Email: laura.johnston@eastleigh.gov.uk 
 

 Andy Thompson, Local Area Manager Tel: 023 8068 8357; 
Email: andy.thompson@eastleigh.gov.uk 

 
 

 
 

JOANNE CASSAR 
Executive Head of Governance 

 

 
Copies of this and all other agendas can be accessed via the Council's website  
as well as in other formats. 

 
Members of the public are invited to speak on general items at the start of the meeting, 
and on individual agenda items at the time the item is discussed.  To register please 
contact the Democratic Services Officer above. 
 
Please be aware that the filming, audio recording, photography and use of social media is 
permitted at meetings open to the public. We ask that you notify the Chair or Support 

1

https://meetings.eastleigh.gov.uk/


 

Officers in advance so that all attendees can be notified, and reasonable facilities can be 
provided. More information can be found here. 
 

Please note that Councillors will be using tablet devices to access meeting papers. 

2

https://www.eastleigh.gov.uk/media/11419/recording-photography-and-filming-of-ebc-meetings-final.pdf


AGENDA 
 

1.   Apologies  
 

2.   Public Participation  
 
You can submit questions in advance of the meeting to the following email 
address: democratic.services@eastleigh.gov.uk. The deadline for submissions is 
12pm on Tuesday 28 June 2022. 
 
Please let us know if you wish to attend the meeting in person so that we can 
manage numbers.  We are still encouraging gall those in attendance to take a 
lateral flow test before attending the meeting.  PLEASE DO NOT ATTEND IF 
YOU HAVE ANY COVID-19 SYMPTOMS. 
 

3.   Minutes (Pages 3 - 8) 
 
To consider the Minutes of the meeting held on 9 March 2022. 
 

4.   Declarations of Interest  
 
Members are invited to declare interests in relation to items of business on the 
agenda.  Any interests declared will be recorded in the Minutes. 
 

5.   Chair's Announcements  
 

6.   Financial Report (Pages 9 - 16) 
 

7.   Appointments to Outside Bodies, Regulatory Panels and Other Groups (Pages 
17 - 22) 
 

8.   TRO, Various Roads Bishopstoke, Fair Oak and Horton Heath Area (Pages 23 - 
38) 
 

9.   How this Committee's decisions are impacting on climate and the environment  
 

 

DATE OF NEXT MEETING 
Wednesday, 28 September 2022 at 7:00 pm 
In the Bishopstoke Guides HQ, West Drive, 

SO50 6FL 
 

 
Your Council’s electronic news service - e-news  - 
 
Register your email address free with the Council and keep up to date with what’s 
happening in the Borough.  Simply select your topics and we will send you email updates 
with news as it happens including new Council Jobs, What’s On, Recycling, Transport plus 
lots more.  
 

3

mailto:democratic.services@eastleigh.gov.uk
http://www.eastleigh.gov.uk/enews


This page is intentionally left blank



1 
 

 

BISHOPSTOKE, FAIR OAK AND HORTON HEATH LOCAL AREA 
COMMITTEE 

 
Wednesday, 9 March 2022  (7:02 pm – 11:01 pm) 

 
PRESENT: 
 
Councillor Parker-Jones (Chair); Councillors Broomfield, Marsh and 
Tidridge 
 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Dean and Rushton 
 

________________________________________ 
 

RESOLVED ITEMS (SUBJECT TO QUESTIONS ONLY) 
 

52. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 
 
There was no public participation on this occasion. 
 

53. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 
There were no declarations of interest in relation to items of business on 
the agenda. 
 

54. MINUTES 
 
RESOLVED - 
 
That the Minutes of the meeting held on 26 January 2022 be 
confirmed and signed by the Chair as a correct record. 
 

55. CHAIR'S ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 
Item 11 (Financial Report) and 12 (Local Area Action Plan) were taken 
before Item 5 (Chair’s Announcements) on the agenda. 
 
The Chair mentioned that new fencing was due to be completed at The 
Planney in Bishopstoke, and thanked the Community Development Officer 
and community payback team for their work to open up the area and allow 
improved flora and fauna growth. 
 
The Chair stated she was sad to see what was happening in the Ukraine 
and thanked everyone in the Bishopstoke, Fair Oak and Horton Heath 
areas for standing with the people of the Ukraine, and offered the thoughts 
and support of the Committee. 
 

5

Agenda Item 3



2 
 

 

 
56. MOTION 

 
Councillor Parker-Jones moved the following Motion, which included an 
amendment to the wording, which was seconded by Councillor Tidridge:  
 
This committee actively promotes and champions the establishment 
of a local nature reserve on land being purchased at Stoke Park 
Farm. To ensure the site provides a diverse range of habitats, that 
nitrates and other environmentally harmful impacts from its previous 
use are eliminated and that it remains a special place for wildlife, 
nature and the people of Bishopstoke, Fair Oak and Horton Heath 
and indeed all across the Borough in perpetuity. 
 
RESOLVED –  
 
That the motion, as amended, be approved and recommended to 
Cabinet. 
 
(NOTE: Two people submitted written statements in support of the Motion, 
citing reasons, including but not limited to, migration networks for insects, 
mammals and slow-moving plants, reconnection of woodland areas, 
wildlife preservation, opportunities for children to connect with nature, 
accessibility to residents via the bridleways and footpaths, engagement 
with local residents, protecting and enhancing valued landscapes, benefits 
of the ecosystem, halting the decline in biodiversity, and improved habitat 
and hedgerows. Three people spoke in support of the Motion citing 
reasons, including but not limited to, an increased request for more land 
and greenspace, enhanced wildlife corridors, and the preservation of land 
from unsustainable development.) 
 

57. PRESENTATION ON PLANNING GUIDELINES 
 
The Principal Planning Officer gave a short presentation on guidelines that 
had to be taken into account when determining planning applications; in 
particular the aspects that could, and could not, be taken into account. 
This was set against the broader policy framework.  
 

58. PLANNING APPLICATION - FIELDFARE, WINCHESTER ROAD, FAIR 
OAK, EASTLEIGH, SO50 7HD (X/21/92081) 
 
The Committee considered the report of the Executive Head of Planning 
and Economy (Agenda item 8) concerning removal of condition 6 
(permanent dwelling for agricultural worker) of planning permission 
Z/29632/005/00 for erection of agricultural workers dwelling (X/21/92081). 
 
There were no updates. 
 
RESOLVED - 
 

6



3 
 

 

That permission be GRANTED subject to recommended conditions 
and addition of the following informative wording: 
 
Whilst planning permission has been granted for the removal of the 
agricultural tie, the Applicant (or subsequent owner) is reminded that 
the application site falls within the designated countryside and 
therefore any future development that requires planning permission 
would be subject to the necessary national and local planning policy 
requirements including the countryside restraint policies of the 
current Local Plan. It should be noted that this decision does not 
prejudice any future application.  
 
(NOTE: The applicant’s planning agent spoke in support of the 
application.) 
 

59. PLANNING APPLICATION - LAND REAR OF OAKFIELDS, 
WINCHESTER ROAD, FAIR OAK (F/21/90322) 
 
The Committee considered the report of the Executive Head of Planning 
and Economy (Agenda item 9) concerning an application for the Erection 
of 8no. dwellings with parking, landscaping and associated works 
(amended description).  (Ref: F/21/90322). 
 
The Committee requested an item be added to the next agenda regarding 
how the Committee’s decisions were impacting on the climate and 
environment. 
 
RESOLVED - 
 
That permission be REFUSED for the following reasons:  
 

1. The proposed development would lead to an unacceptable 
impact of the living environment for future occupiers of the 
proposed dwellings and adjoining residential properties. 
Specifically, it has not been demonstrated that the mechanical 
measures proposed to minimise external noise to the rear 
elevations of the buildings would result in an acceptable living 
environment particularly in relation to the potential for undue 
overheating in these rooms. In addition, the proximity of the 
development to adjoining residential properties would lead to 
adverse overlooking and loss of privacy. The development is 
therefore contrary to saved policies 31.ES and 59.BE of the 
adopted Eastleigh Borough Local Plan Review 2001-2011, 
policy DM1 of the Emerging Eastleigh Borough Local Plan 
2016-203 and the adopted Quality Spaces SPD (key design 
principle 11). 
 

2. The proposals would lead to a cramped form of development 
due to the number of properties spaced close together, which 
is not reflective of the rural edge location and would have a 

7



4 
 

 

harmful impact on the character and appearance of the 
surrounding area. The development is contrary to saved policy 
59.BE of the adopted Eastleigh Borough Local Plan Review 
2001-2011, policy DM1 of the Emerging Eastleigh Borough 
Local Plan 2016-2036 and the adopted Quality Spaces SPD 
(key design principle 3). 
 

3. The proposed development does not provide safe and 
convenient access to the highway for all highway users 
through the lack of footway along the frontage of the site, 
leading to highway safety concerns through the competing 
demands of pedestrians, cyclists and vehicles utilising the 
highway space. The development is therefore contrary to 
saved policies 59.BE and 102.T of the adopted Eastleigh 
Borough Local Plan Review 2001-2011 and policy DM13 of the 
Emerging Eastleigh Borough Local Plan 2016-2036. 
 

4. The application fails to provide the required mitigation to offset 
the impacts of the development upon the European protected 
Solent Complex (SPA, SAC and Ramsar sites) from additional 
nitrogen loading generated by the population increase and 
additional sewage resulting from the development. The 
proposal is therefore contrary to the requirements of Saved 
Policy 25.NC of the adopted Eastleigh Borough Local Plan 
Review 2001-2011, Policy DM11 of the Emerging Eastleigh 
Borough Local Plan 2016-2036, the provisions of the NPPF and 
the Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 2017. 

 
(NOTES: One person spoke in objection to the application citing concerns, 
including but not limited to, a “squashed in” development, the loss of 
privacy and amenity, the lack of 22 metres, as stated in the guidance, 
between one of the plots and Oakfields, the noise report being taken 
during the pandemic in August 2020 when traffic movement was 
unrealistic, the quality of the housing provided in the application, and the 
knotweed being left behind the border hedges. 
 
The applicant’s planning agent spoke in support of the application.) 
 

60. PLANNING APPLICATION - TREETOPS, ALLINGTON LANE, FAIR OAK, 
EASTLEIGH, SO50 7DB (F/21/91132) 
 
The Committee considered the report of the Executive Head of Planning 
and Economy (Agenda item 10) concerning demolition of all existing 
buildings on site and erection of 35 residential dwellings with vehicular 
access from Allington Lane and associated infrastructure, hard and soft 
landscaping, open space and drainage (F/21/91132). 
 
The Committee were updated that: 
 

8



5 
 

 

 Updated drainage plans had now been received – no significant 
change to proposals but includes updated levels details.  

 Condition 1 (approved plans) and 13 (drainage details) as set in 
agenda, to be updated with revised plan numbers.  
 

Updates to conditions: 
 

 Condition 13 - revised 3-month timescale for submission of 
additional drainage details. 

 Condition 26 omitted (parking management – no longer needed as 
fully allocated provision proposed). 

 A revised list of conditions was circulated to members 7/3/22.  

 New condition 29:  County Archaeologist has responded advising 
further condition for archaeological evaluation as described in the 
submitted WSI and the recording of any archaeological remains 
identified by the archaeological evaluation (final wording tbc). 
 

Consultation responses from HCC Childrens’ Services, NE (on AA), 
landscape officer (on latest amendments) outstanding and further 
conditions/planning obligations may need to be added. 
 
The Committee also required amendments to Condition 17 (landscaping) 
to enable further landscaping plans with larger tree specimens and 
Condition 27 (bird nesting season restrictions) to enable EBC ecologist 
agreement prior to works commencing. 
 
RESOLVED - 
 
That permission be GRANTED subject to: 
 

i) the receipt and consideration of outstanding 
consultation responses from Hampshire County Council 
(HCC) Children’s Services, the Council’s Landscape 
Officer, and Natural England; 

ii) any necessary updates to conditions and reasons; and 
iii) the applicant entering into a legal agreement to secure 

the required planning obligations and affordable 
housing 

 
To Delegate back to the Executive Head of Planning and Economy in 
conjunction with the Chair and Vice Chair of Bishopstoke, Fair Oak 
and Horton Heath Local Area Committee to PERMIT subject to 
conditions. 
 
(NOTE: One written statement was received in objection to the application 
citing concerns, including but not limited to, overdevelopment of the site, 
proximity to current houses boundaries, overlooking, damage to current 
trees and wildlife. Two people spoke in objection to the application citing 
concerns, including but not limited to, the number of homes being 
proposed on the site, extra pressure on local schools, further entrance/exit 

9



6 
 

 

onto Allington Lane – which was already busy, impact on wildlife, impact 
on drainage system, impact on the environment, lack of safety for children, 
lack of diversity of the landscape, lack of play facilities, lack of support for 
climate change, loss of trees and woodland, loss of greenspace, lack of 
drainage areas, and the impact on health and well-being of residents. 
 
The applicant’s planning agent spoke in support of the application.) 
 

61. FINANCIAL REPORT 
 
Item 11 (Financial Report) and 12 (Local Area Action Plan) were taken 
before item 5 (Chair’s Announcements) on the agenda. 
 
The Committee received a report by the Local Area Manager (agenda item 
11) relating to expenditure from the Committee’s developer contributions: 
 
RESOLVED –  
 
That the Committee approved the following recommendation: 
 
(1) £270,000 was allocated from developer contributions for the 

Lapstone Playing Fields development in Fair Oak. 

 
62. LOCAL AREA ACTION PLAN 

 
Item 11 (Financial Report) and 12 (Local Area Action Plan) were taken 
before Item 5 (Chair’s Announcements) on the agenda. 
 
The Local Area Action Plan for 2022/2023 (Agenda item 12) was outlined 
by the Local Area Manager.  
 
Councillor Broomfield raised concerns that it appeared that the Horton 
Heath Development Forum had become dormant. 
 
The Local Area Manager agreed to check with the One Horton Heath team 
and let the Committee know the outcome. 
 
RESOLVED –  
 
That the Committee approved the Local Area Action Plan 2022/2023 
for Bishopstoke, Fair Oak and Horton Heath. 

10



BISHOPSTOKE, FAIR OAK & HORTON HEATH (BIFOHH) LOCAL 
AREA COMMITTEE (LAC) 

Wednesday 29 June 2022 

FINANCE MONITORING REPORT 

 Report of the Local Area Manager 

 

Recommendation(s) 

It is recommended that   
 
(1) £18,000 is allocated from developer contributions for extension to the parking 

provision for the splashpad and new Café at New Century Park development 
in Fair Oak; 

(2) £15,000 is allocated from developer contributions for a replacement fence and 
boardwalk at the West Horton Farm countryside site in Bishopstoke; and 

(3) £2,100 is allocated from existing revenue budgets as the BIFOHH contribution 
to the Holiday Activity and Food Programme. 

 

 

 

Summary 
 
This report contains recommendations for expenditure from the Committee’s developer 
contributions and revenue budget. 

Statutory Powers 
 
Section 1 of the Localism Act 2011 i.e. the Local Authority's general power of competence, 
including power to act for the benefit of its area or persons resident or present in its area. 
S.106 Town and Country Planning Act 1990 

 

Strategic Implications  

 1.The works outlined below contribute to the following strategic priorities: 

Local First: where possible taking decisions at a local level about things 
which affect people’s lives, and using contributions from local developments 
for local projects 

11

Agenda Item 6



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

Healthy Community: to enable healthier lifestyles and wellbeing 

Green Borough: Excellent Environment for all: creating a sense of place 
through improved community facilities, developing green infrastructure 

 

Extended parking provision for the splashpad and new Café 
at New Century Park development, Fair Oak 

2. Fair Oak and Horton Heath Parish Council (FO&HH), as part of its Splashpad, 
Café and wider environmental improvements to New Century Park, require 
funds to support the enhancements of the current car park on the north of the 
site, including increasing the number of bays, line marking and space for cycle 
racks.  

3. New access is also being considered for safer access and egress. FO&HH 
will use the spoils from the splashpad installation to create bunding around the 
car park which will be sown with wildflowers. This will also act as additional 
park security as a natural barrier for unauthorised encampments.  

4. The improved car parking area will also be used to host community events, 
including a local makers market. As part of the Council’s Greening Campaign, 
residents are encouraged to access local services via greener forms of travel. 
However, the Council does need to provide adequate parking for those with 
limited mobility as well as visitors to the area.  

5. It is therefore recommended that Councillors approve the below developer 
contributions to progress this community scheme.  

  

F/15/77500 Foreman Homes re Land to West of Hammerley 
Farm, Horton Heath 

 

 

£18,000 

 

 

TOTAL 

 

£18,000  

 

Replacement Fence and Boardwalk West Horton Farm 
Countryside Site, Bishopstoke 

6. The West Horton Farm countryside site has a 20-metre-long boardwalk and 
c100 metres of post and rail fence that runs alongside the road. The 
boardwalk is on a public right of way and well used.  

12



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

7. The decking boards are approaching the end of their shelf life and although 
singular repairs have been made to individual boards, the time has come for a 
full replacement boardwalk, as it has been deemed a risk if left much longer. 

8. The proposal is to replace the existing softwood boards with green oak at a 
cost of £9,500. The posts and bearers are made from oak which has a longer 
lifespan that the softwood decking boards, which is why these decking boards 
have failed first. To replace the softwood decking boards, like for like, is 
slightly cheaper (£2k), however, it is anticipated that they would only last a 
decade. The oak is usually expected to last 20 years compared to the 10 
years for softwood. Therefore, it is expected the proposed new oak boards 
would last as long as the structure, however, with anything there is no 
guarantee, as there are many variables in play. 

9. There is a further option to provide a recycled plastic boardwalk, however, due 
to staff capacity, costings and quotes have been unable to be provided before 
the publication of this report. It is therefore proposed that Countryside staff 
investigate this option, and should this be deemed preferable by Countryside 
officers, then a future finance report will come back to this Committee and 
make this recommendation and any cost changes.  

10. The post and rail fence is in slightly better condition.  There are 56 posts, 20 
have failed and 36 are currently not failed, so the fence is still upright but 
sections of it will fall over in the coming 12 months if no maintenance is 
undertaken. It will be more expensive to extract and replace failed posts over 
time than it will to do the fence in one go. It is therefore recommended that a 
replacement fence is provided. The replacement fence is estimated at £5,500. 

11. It is recommended that Councillors approve the below developer contributions 
to provide a new green oak boardwalk and post and rail fence, with the caveat 
that should the recycled plastic boardwalk be deemed preferable by officers, 
then a future finance report will update Councillors and request further 
funding, should this be more expensive.  

 

F/15/77500 Foreman Homes re Land to West of Hammerley 
Farm, Horton Heath  

 

 

£15,000 

 

 

TOTAL 

 

£15,000  

 

 

 

13



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

Summer Holiday Activity and Food Programme for 
Disadvantaged Families 

12. On the back of the Marcus Rashford Campaign to end child food poverty the 
Department for Education (DFE) have given Hampshire County Council 
(HCC) £3.3 million to provide school holiday food and activity programmes 
primarily targeted at families in receipt of free school meals (FSM). Last year 
the Council was successful in securing funding from this pot to deliver a 
programme of free family activity days (one per week for five weeks) during 
the school summer holidays at Itchen Valley Country Park (IVCP).  

13. Each event provided a range of outdoor fun, creative and enriching activities 
to promote physical activity, healthy eating and learning and included a two-
course hot meal. At the end of each event families were given a goody bag to 
take home which included recipe cards, healthy eating information and games 
to encourage family play and physical activity.  

14. Whilst IVCP is a great location and offers plenty of outdoor space, the Council 
recognised that it is not easily accessible without access to private transport 
therefore, a free bus service from the north and south of the Borough with a 
number of pick up / drop off points on both routes was provided. Transport 
was also provided for those with additional needs or requiring wheelchair 
access.  

15. In order to maximise the opportunity for vulnerable families to attend, the 
Council worked with all of the Borough’s Primary Schools to specifically 
promote the programme to their FSM families two weeks in advance of any 
wider publicity. This approach proved to be particularly successful as all of the 
events were fully booked within 48 hours of the booking system going live. In 
total the Council welcomed 456 participants of which 278 were children aged 
between 3 and 10 years. 90% of families were in receipt of FSM. 

16. Feedback about the events from participants was extremely positive.  Families 
really valued and benefitted from the programme and the free transport was 
instrumental in enabling many families to attend (particularly from the north of 
the Borough) that would have otherwise been unable to.  

17. In light of the success of last year’s programme and the impact of cost of living 
crisis, the Council would like to deliver a similar programme again this 
summer. However, this year HCC have changed the funding application 
process which has now moved to a tender process. Whilst a tender has been 
submitted, the criteria is much more tailored towards providers of child day 
care offering a minimum 4 day per week service.   

18. Last year, HCC acknowledged that the offer provided something different in 
terms of working with the whole family, but given that the programme falls 
outside of the new criteria there is concern that the programme may not be 
successful with this year.  

19. It is vital the Council continues to support our vulnerable families but without 
the funding it is unlikely the project will be able to be delivered. Therefore, as 

14



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

an alternative option, there is an opportunity to explore if there could be any 
funding from all the LAC’s, should the bid to HCC be unsuccessful.  

20. The outcome of the application will not be known until the end of June/July 
2022. The overall project would cost around £12K, looking to offer 
approximately 100 places at each event. 

21. Last year’s booking’s data has been analysed to determine uptake by 
geographical area for information. This is however, only one year’s data and 
the uptake could be very different this time round. 

 

LAC Area Number of 
participants 

Percentage 

BIFOHH 43 9.4 

BHH 36 7.9 

CFH 52 11.4 

Eastleigh 255 55.9 

HEWEB 70           15.3 

 

 

22. In terms of the proportion of funding from each LAC, a 17.5% contribution 
from BIFOHH, BHH, CFH and HEWEB (£2,100 each) has been proposed with 
the remaining 30% being contributed from ELAC (£3,600), given the higher 
proportion of families from this area.  

23. LAC funding for this year is proposed as a back-up plan, however, if LAC’s 
were interested in supporting the project with additional funding there is the 
option to increase the capacity to enable more families to participate. This will 
be communicated in due course, should this arise.  

24. It is therefore recommended that £2,100 is reallocated from unallocated 
exiting BIFOHH revenue budgets. 

Financial Implications 

25. The recommendations in this report can be contained within the revenue 
budget and within existing allocated and unallocated developer’s 
contributions. 

15



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

Risk Assessment 

26. The recommendations in this report carry a medium to high risk to the Council 
and its partners. The main risk centres around the dangers of not replacing 
the boardwalk. The boardwalks condition has now come to the attention of the 
Council, and we need to act to ensure it is safe for users. 

27. The extension to the car parking provision at New Century Park does provide 
a potential reputational risk to the Council as the development of a new car 
park could be seen as promoting vehicle use which would not support the 
climate crisis. FO&HH are seeking to mitigate this with the planting of 
wildflowers on the bund, adding cycle racks and continuing through its many 
channels to promote greener transport to residents.  

28. It is a fact, however, that this will be a heavily used facility, and without 
adequate provision, car parking will spill onto neighbouring roads and cause 
frustration to local residents in the immediate vicinity. Also, if local car users 
cannot find space at the facility to park, they will then increase their journey 
further afield, seeking out similar facilities in the wider area, therefore 
increasing car use.  

29. The risk of not contributing to the Food and Activity programme could 
jeopardise the Council’s ability to provide the scheme. This could add to the 
pressure of those families who are most in need during the difficult summer 
holidays. 

Equality and Diversity Implications 

30. A full Equality Impact Assessment (EqIA) has not been carried out, because 
each project individually will have due regard to equalities impacts and 
complete an impact assessment where it is proportionate to do so and prior to 
the delivery of the approved funds. 

31. The additional car parking at New Century Park will allow extra allocation for 
those with limited mobility and wheelchair users. 

32. The improved board walk at West Horton Farm will allow for a smoother and 
safer journey for wheelchair users and parents with pushchairs.   

33. The holiday food and activity programme provides arguably the greatest 
benefit in terms of equality. The programme offers those children on FSM the 
opportunity for activity and meals in the summer holidays.  

Climate Change and Environmental Implications 

34. The recommendation within this report will have a medium impact in regard to 
climate change.  

35. The fundamental environmental sensitivity is the request for additional car 
parking at New Century Park. As stated above, this is an unfortunate 
dichotomy for the Council when balancing its green credentials as well as 

16



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

providing community facilities. However, by not providing extra car parking, 
this will not make the problem go away, simply move it onto neighbouring 
streets, or increase the length of car journeys to facilities outside of the area. 
Cycle racks will be provided and the already active campaign to encourage 
residents to use greener forms of transport by FO&HH continue to be 
delivered.  

Conclusion 

36. Councillors are requested to agree expenditure from this Committee’s 
available developer contributions and note the revenue allocation. 

 

ANDREW THOMPSON 
LOCAL AREA MANAGER (BIFOHH) 

Date: 29 June 2022 
Contact Officer: Andrew Thompson 
Tel No: 023 8068 8357 
e-mail: andrew.thompson@eastleigh.gov.uk 
Appendices Attached: 0 

 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - SECTION 100D 

The following is a list of documents which disclose facts or matters on which this 
report or an important part of it is based and have been relied upon to a material 
extent in the preparation of this report. This list does not include any published works 
or documents which would disclose exempt or confidential information. 

 None. 
 

17



This page is intentionally left blank



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

EASTLEIGH LOCAL AREA COMMITTEE  

Tuesday, 7 June 2022  

APPOINTMENTS TO REGUALTORY PANELS, OTHER GROUPS 
AND OUTSIDE BODIES 

Report of the Local Area Manager 

 

Recommendation 

It is recommended that: 
  
(1) the nominations for 2022/23 municipal year appointments to regulatory panels 

and other groups as set out in paragraph 5 are approved; and 
(2) the proposed nominations for 2022/23 municipal year appointments to 

Outside Bodies, as set out in appendix A are approved. 
 

Summary 
 
Regulatory Panels are formal decision-making panels required to deliver the council’s 
statutory obligations. The other groups comprise those established to share information or 
manage local initiatives. Outside bodies are external organisations, including formal or 
informal partnerships, to which the Borough Council is a party, which have requested that 
the Borough Council appoint an Elected Councillor or a representative to them or to which 
the Council expects to make appointments.  

Statutory Powers 
 
Local Government Act 2000, Localism Act 2011. 

 

Strategic Implications 

1. This report relates to governance arrangements which underpin all the 
Council’s Corporate Plan objectives. 

Introduction 

2. Regulatory Panels are formal decision-making panels required to deliver the 
council statutory obligations, such as Licensing. The other groups comprise 
those established to share information or manage local initiatives. 

3. Outside bodies are external organisations and partnerships which have 
requested that the Borough Council appoint an Elected Councillor or a 
representative to them.  Participation in outside bodies: 

19

Agenda Item 7



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

 Contributes to the Borough Council’s strategic functions, priorities or 
community leadership roles; 

 Supports partnership and joint working; and 

 Enables Councillors to gain and share knowledge and expertise. 
 
4. All Councillors are eligible to be appointed as representatives of the Borough 

Council on these groups.  Councillors and staff appointed must respond to all 
reasonable requests for information about the work of the outside body and 
their participation in it. 

Proposal 

5. This Committee is responsible for making Councillor appointments to several 
Regulatory Panels and other groups. The following nominations have been 
made for Councillor representatives for the municipal year 22-23 and it is 
recommended that these are approved as follows. 

Regulatory Panels Councillor nominations for 22-23 

Licensing – to deal with issues not 
covered by the Licensing Act 2003 
or the Gambling Act 2005 

 

All members of the Committee to be 
appointed to a pool from which any 
three can be selected. 

Licensing Panels as appointed by 
full Council for the purposes of the 
Licensing Act 2003 or the Gambling 
Act 2005 

Cllr N Couldrey 
Cllr R Dean 
Cllr G Tidridge 

 

6. This Committee is also responsible for making Councillor appointments to 
Outside Bodies within the Bishopstoke, Fair Oak and Horton Heath local area. 
A list of outside bodies to which the Local Councillors makes appointments to 
and the recommended nominees can be found at Appendix A. 

Financial Implications 

7. There are no financial implications associated with this decision. 

Risk Assessment 

8. Councillors must consider the implications and responsibilities of being 
involved with outside bodies as they must:  

 Continue to comply with the Borough Council’s Code of Conduct when 
they are acting as a representative of the Council.  

 Comply with the code of conduct of the outside body they are appointed to 
if one exists.  

20



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

 Declare a personal interest in any business of the Borough Council where 
it relates to a body, they are appointed to by the Borough Council.   

 
9. All Councillors are recommended to make sure that when they take up their 

appointment with the outside body, they have access to the key documents 
regulating the organisation such as its constitution or terms of reference to 
ensure they are aware of what the body can and cannot do and receive a 
briefing on the body or their role within it if necessary.  

10. There is a risk that appointments will not be made to all the outside bodies 
which could hinder the Borough Council in furthering its interests and 
priorities, and not develop the external facing role of Councillors. 

Equality and Diversity Implications 

11. The Equality Act is not relevant to the decision in this report because it is 
making an appointment to outside bodies. Equality and diversity will be 
considered as part of the work of these bodies. 

Climate Change and Environmental Implications 

12.  Councillors are encouraged to travel sustainably where possible on Council 
business to reduce the impact on the environment.  Following the Covid-19 
pandemic, many informal meetings have continued to be held remotely 
therefore reducing the need for Councillors to travel to these. 

Conclusion 

13. That the appointments to the Regulatory Panels, other groups and Outside 
Bodies should approved for the 2022/23 municipal year. 

ANDREW THOMPSON 
    LOCAL AREA MANAGER (BIFOHH) 

Date: 29 June 2022 
Contact Officer: Andy Thompson 
Tel No: 023 8068 8357 
e-mail: andrew.thompson@eastleigh.gov.uk 
Appendices Attached: 1 
 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - SECTION 100D 

The following is a list of documents which disclose facts or matters on which this 
report or an important part of it is based and have been relied upon to a material 
extent in the preparation of this report. This list does not include any published works 
or documents which would disclose exempt or confidential information.  None. 
 

 

21



This page is intentionally left blank



APPOINTMENTS TO OUTSIDE BODIES 2022/23 

 

Bishopstoke, Fair Oak and Horton Heath Local Area Committee 
 

Name of Organisation: TWYNAMS CHARITIES 

2021-22 

Representative(s) were: 

Steve Broomfield (Local Area Cllr) 

Contact Officer: To be confirmed 

Committee: Bishopstoke, Fair Oak and Horton Heath Local Area 
Committee 

Terms of reference  

and objectives of 

organisation: 

To provide reasonably priced accommodation for those 
people in need, who have links with the ancient parish of 
Bishopstoke. The Trustees shall first defray out of income 
the cost of repairs and insurances for the terrace of 5 
houses known as Twynam's Cottages in Fair Oak Square, 
Fair Oak, Hampshire.  When sufficient funds are available, 
help for people in need, who are residents in the area, will 
be met. 

Key areas of interest and 

topical Issues for the 

organisation: 

Regulations regarding the letting to tenants.  Fair rents and 
property maintenance. 

No of meetings per year: 

 
3 

Usual time of meeting(s): 
 
6.30 pm 

Normal amount of 

notice given of 

meeting(s): 
 
1 Month 

Desired skills, qualities, 

knowledge or experience 

Members should have: 

A genuine interest in the welfare of others.  Should be a 
person residing or carrying on business in or near the area 
of the Ancient Parish of Bishopstoke.  May be, but need not 
be, a member of the appointing Council.  The appointment 
will be made for a term of 1 year.. 

Details of any training 

provided: 

None. 

Details of anticipated 

workload: 

eg will member attend 

meeting only or be 

involved in other work?  

Attend meetings regularly and possibly interview prospective 
tenants when necessary. 

Name and address of 

contact for organisation: 

Peter Gardiner 
Clerk to Twynams Charities 
 

 

23



This page is intentionally left blank



BISHOPSTOKE, FAIR OAK, HORTON HEATH 

LOCAL AREA COMMITTEE 

29 June 2022 

TRAFFIC REGULATION ORDERS (TRO) - VARIOUS ROADS 

Report of the Senior Engineering Specialist 

 

Recommendation(s) 

It is recommended that the Committee approve the making of a Traffic Regulation 
order, the effects of which are to:  
 

(1) introduce waiting restrictions, as advertised, in:  
 
a) Bishops Court; 
b Camelia Grove; 
c) Church Road; 
d) Longmead Avenue; 
e) Rose Close;  
f) Shorts Road; 
g) Stoke Park Road; and 
h) Rogers Road. 
 

(2) introduce waiting restrictions in Witt Road, of a reduced length, to exclude 
the driveway of No 84 Witt Road as requested. 
 

(3) Formalise two disabled persons parking places in Summerlands Road, 
adjacent to the parade of shops, for general use by blue badge holders. 
 

(4) introduce bus ‘cages’ in Shorts Road to support bus movement in line with 
sustainable transport priorities.  
 

 

Summary 
 
A proposal to introduce waiting and parking restrictions in various roads in Bishopstoke 
and Fair Oak was advertised on 7 January 2022.  Representations were received both in 
support of, and objecting to the restrictions.  This report summarises the comments 
received and recommends how to proceed. 

Statutory Powers 
 

25

Agenda Item 8



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984; Traffic Management Act 2004.  

Legal Agreements 

Agency Agreement between Hampshire County Council and Eastleigh Borough Council 
dated 10 September 2019 

 

Strategic Implications  

1. Creating an excellent environment for all by removing obstructive and 
inconsiderate parking, and by providing disabled parking places outside local 
shops. 

Introduction 

2. Various roads in the Bishopstoke, Fair Oak and Horton Heath Local Area 
have been investigated in response to reported problems such as obstructive 
parking.  Site investigations were undertaken to assess the issues being 
experienced by road users, and to decide on appropriate measures to mitigate 
the issues.   

3. This report details the comments received during the public consultation 
period.  The Committee is asked to consider the comments received, before 
making a decision to introduce, amend or withdraw the Traffic Regulation 
Order. 

Detail 

4. Consultation was undertaken by means of a Public Notice on the Eastleigh 
Borough Council website, published in the Hampshire Independent 
newspaper, and posted on street furniture in the vicinity of the proposed 
restrictions.  Plans showing the proposed restrictions are in Appendix 1. 

5. Ten representations were received to the Traffic Regulation Order as detailed 
below:   

-Two are in relation to Longmead Avenue, 

-One in relation to Stoke Park Road  

-One in relation to Witt Road  

-Three in relation to Camelia Grove  

-One in relation to Shorts Road  

-Two relating to the order in general.   

The objections are summarised below, along with the Engineer’s response.   

26



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

 

 

 

 

Comment Engineer’s response 

Longmead Avenue   

A resident of Longmead Avenue is 
intending to apply to convert their 
front garden into parking spaces. The 
resident also expressed concern that 
a parking restriction would prevent 
permission being given.  

The proposed restriction is unlikely to 
affect an application to the Highway 
Authority for a vehicular crossing. 
This restriction would reinforce 
Highway Code Rule 243  

Another resident objects to 
restrictions on Longmead Avenue and 
Church Road on the grounds that the 
proposals and not required and 
questioned if there was any history of 
accidents or incidents of obstruction 
at these locations.   

There have been complaints about 
the parking within the junction that is 
a contravention of the guidance given 
in the highway code. Rule 243 of the 
Highway codes states ‘DO NOT stop 
or park opposite or within 10 metres 
of a junction’. There had been a 
collision involving a child in Church 
Road. Forward visibility obstructed by 
parked cars had been a contributory 
factor to the collision. 

Stoke Park Road   

A resident of Stoke Park Road wrote 
to enquire where the restrictions 
would begin and end and also asked 
if the restrictions could be longer, 
indicating they have difficulty with 
visibility at times due to the way in 
which visitors to the woods park. 

The extent of the restriction has been 
clarified together with the location of 
the restriction. If this order is 
implemented, and the issue persists, 
they might consider contacting their 
local Councillor to seek support for an 
extension.  

Shorts Road  

Shorts Road a request was received 
from Hampshire County Council 
suggesting a road marking for the bus 
stop should be included on the south 
side of the road to ensure buses are 
not obstructed by parking. 

The proposed measures are 
formalising the parking which already 
occurs and the requested ‘bus cage’ 
markings are to be included. 

27



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

Witt Road  

A resident of Witt Road asked that the 
parking restriction not be taken 
across their driveway access  

This report recommends that this 
restriction is shortened to incorporate 
the request without compromising the 
effectiveness of the order. 

Camelia Grove  

Camelia Grove one resident wrote 
‘This is not solving a parking problem! 
A lot of the houses on the estate were 
built with one parking space, as most 
households have two or more cars 
there will always be an overflow for 
parking. Can you claim that parking in 
Camellia Grove is dangerous, and 
have you done a study of this? 
People will start double parking which 
will start blocking the roads and make 
it impossible for emergency vehicles 
to access if needed. And if we have 
visitors or tradesmen at our property 
we will have nowhere for them to 
park. It’s a ridiculous suggestion.’ 

This proposal came about as a result 
of complaints from residents who felt 
the parking on the approach to the 
junction with Mortimers Lane caused 
a hazard. Specifically, when drivers 
entering Camelia Grove meet another 
exiting the road and there was 
insufficient space for them to 
manoeuvre past each other without 
the driver entering having to reverse 
back out on to Mortimers Lane. Rule 

243 of the Highway codes states ‘DO 
NOT stop or park opposite or within 10 
metres of a junction’. 

The measures proposed are 
designed to ensure that the inbound 
lane remains clear, whilst the 
restriction close to the junction 
ensures there will be space for 
vehicles to pass. Recognising the fact 
that there is a general lack of parking 
in this road, the restrictions have 
been kept to the minimum so that on 
street parking can be retained as far 
as possible whilst addressing the 
safety concern. 

‘This is a pointless waste of time, 
except the lines from Mortimer's lane 
12m into Camelia Grove on the east 
side. No-one ever parks on the west 
side, because it would totally block 
the road, or the corner of the side cul-
de-sac of houses on the east side of 
Camelia Grove’ 

The proposal came about as a result 
of complaints from residents who felt 
the parking on the approach to the 
junction with Mortimers Lane caused 
a hazard, specifically when drivers 
entering the Camelia Grove meet 
another exiting the road and there 
was insufficient space for them to 
manoeuvre past each other without 
the driver entering to having to 
reverse back out on to Mortimers 
Lane. Rule 243 of the Highway codes 

states ‘DO NOT stop or park opposite or 

28



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

within 10 metres of a junction. 

The measures proposed are 
designed to ensure that the inbound 
lane is remains clear whilst the 
restriction close to the junction 
ensures there will be space for 
vehicles to pass. Recognising the fact 
that there is a general lack of parking 
in this road the restrictions have been 
kept to the minimum so that on street 
parking can be retained as far as 
possible whilst addressing the safety 
concern. 

 

‘There is already a distinct lack of 
parking in this area. I object to the 
proposed Tro on the grounds that: 1. 
There is insufficient parking already in 
this area. 2. No vehicles ever park on 
Camelia Grove West side rendering 
road markings or signage a waste of 
time and money! 3. The threat to 
safety of all is not the parking of 
vehicles on East Side of Camelia 
Grove but the speed of vehicles 
entering Camelia Grove from 
Mortimers lane. 4. The speed limit on 
Mortimers Lane is 30mph, this is 
periodically enforced by police 
manned camera Van's costing x 
amount per day. Vehicles of all nature 
exceed the speed limit regularly by 
substantial amounts. Spend the 
money on serious safety measures 
not token gestures that impose 
unnecessary hardship on law abiding 
residents whilst regular/daily law 
breakers put pedestrians at serious 
risk of death daily! 5. Please spend 
money on significant safety measures 
before someone is killed 
unnecessarily by a speeding motorist! 
Spend the money on permanent 
speed cameras! Someone will be 
killed! Ridiculous speeds are reached 
on this piece of road yet it seems not 
to matter to those who could change 

The proposal came about as a result 
of complaints from residents who felt 
the parking on the approach to the 
junction with Mortimers Lane caused 
a hazard, specifically when drivers 
entering the Camelia Grove meet 
another exiting the road and there 
was insufficient space for them to 
manoeuvre past each other without 
the driver entering to having to 
reverse back out on to Mortimers 
Lane. Rule 243 of the Highway codes 
states ‘DO NOT stop or park opposite or 
within 10 metres of a junction. 

The measures proposed are 
designed to ensure that the inbound 
lane remains clear whilst the 
restriction close to the junction 
ensures there will be space for 
vehicles to pass. Recognising the fact 
that there is a general lack of parking 
in this road the restrictions have been 
kept to the minimum so that on street 
parking can be retained as far as 
possible whilst addressing the safety 
concern. 

With regard to the additional points 
you raise about speeding traffic, the 
installation of speed cameras, and 
installing hand rails alongside steps in 
Fernside Way. These requests fall 
outside the scope of this TRO and 

29



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

it! 6. I would guess that the cost of 
installing speed cameras on 
Mortimers lane would be less than the 
long term cost of utilising our already 
depleted police force and the 
intermittent placing of smiley faces 
speed signs. 7. Claiming to put 
unnecessary restrictive and punitive 
parking restrictions in place in the 
name of public safety when cars and 
lorries routinely travel in excess of 
40mph in a 30mph zone is laughable 
and frankly insulting! 7. If public 
safety is the council's priority I 
suggest they look at installing a 
handrail on the steps on Fernside 
Walk. Currently I believe this fails to 
meet regulations and its slippery 
nature definitely puts the public at 
risk, more so than car parking in 
Camelia Grove! 8. In summary, 
Traffic speed cameras, maintenance 
of public walk ways, and compliance 
with building regulations for outside 
steps would all aid public safety! 
Definately having a positive impact on 
all residents. Imposing unnecessary 
punitive parking restrictions will cost 
and have a negative impact locally. 
Do something positive, the risk of 
death from a low-speed collision is far 
less likely than the risk of death or 
serious injury from a collision 
involving a speeding lorry!’ 

have been passed to the relevant 
departments.  

 

Financial Implications 

6.  The costs of the TRO and associated road markings are funded from the 
core TRO Programme budget as part of the “Various roads” allocations, at a 
cost of approximately £4000.   

Risk Assessment 

7.  If the proposals are not implemented, it is likely that the issues with 
obstructive parking will continue in Bishops Court, Camelia Grove, Church 
Road, Longmead Avenue, Rose Close, Shorts Road, Stoke Park Road, 
Rogers Road, and Witt Road. And continued difficulty for blue badge holders 

30



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

when trying to park near the Summerlands Road shops which has 
reputational and financial implications for the council. 

 

Equality and Diversity Implications 

The Equality Act is relevant to the decision and an Equality Impact 
Assessment (EqIA) has been carried out and attached as an appendix to the 
report.  In summary the EqIA shows that: 
 
(a) There is a positive impact to disabled road users by introducing two 

disabled persons’ parking bays in Summerlands Road. 

(b) There is a positive impact for Road users requiring extra care Highway 
code regulations (204 to 225) 

 
8. Climate Change and Environmental Implications 

The proposals should not increase Greenhouse Gas/CO2, or damage ecology 
or the environment.  Disabled Drivers parking places allowing customers to 
park close to the shops, reducing the time taken to look for parking places.   

 

Conclusion 

9. The proposals have due regard to the requirement of S122 of the Road Traffic 
Regulation Act, by securing the expeditious, convenient and safe movement 
of vehicular and other traffic (including pedestrians) and the provision of 
suitable and adequate parking facilities on the highway.  The proposed waiting 
restrictions attracted objections, comments and an expression of support.  
This report takes into consideration all the representations received and 
recommends that the committee approves the introduction of the restrictions 
as detailed in this report.   

LEAD OFFICER - DAVID PICKETT 
LEAD OFFICER POST SENIOR ENGINEERING SPECIALIST 

 
Date: 08 March 2022 
Contact Officer: David Pickett 
Tel No:  
e-mail: engineers@eastleigh.gov.uk 
Appendices Attached: 1) Proposed Restriction Plans 
 2) Equality Impact Assessment 
 
 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - SECTION 100D 

31



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

The following is a list of documents which disclose facts or matters on which this 
report or an important part of it is based and have been relied upon to a material 
extent in the preparation of this report. This list does not include any published works 
or documents which would disclose exempt or confidential information. 

* List Background Papers or state None. 
 
Appendix 1 Proposed Restriction Plans 
 
 Bishops Court 

 
 

  Camelia Grove 

32



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

 
Church Road

 
 

Longmead Avenue 

33



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

 
 
 
 

Rose Close 

 
 

34



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

Shorts Road 

 
 

Stoke Park Road 

 
 
    Summerlands Road 

35



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

 
 
      Witt Road 

 
 
 

36



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Appendix 2 

37



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

Equality Impact Assessment (EqIA)  

 

Title of EqIA: 

The Borough of Eastleigh (Bishopstoke, Fair Oak & Horton 
Heath) (Amendment No 1) Order 2022 

Brief description of  
the Proposal: 

The effect of the proposal is to introduce waiting restrictions 
to facilitate access to residential premises and leisure 
facilities reduce damage to verges in Bishopstoke Fair Oak 
and Horton Heath. 

Assessment: The measures at Summerlands Road provide dedicated parking spaces for 
blue badge holders at the local shopping facilities where none were previously available, 
The other measures help to ensure pedestrian crossing places are unobstructed both 
physically and for intervisibility between pedestrians and drivers. 

For all of categories below please consider: 

1. Does this proposal eliminate unlawful discrimination? 
2. Does this proposal advance equality of opportunity between people who share a 

protected characteristic and those who do not share it?  
3. Does this proposal foster good relations between people who share a protected 

characteristic and those who do not share it? 
  

38



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

Statutory Considerations: Please highlight what impact could there be on 
people with protected characteristics.  

Age: None 

Disability: Positive impact in terms of improving access for 
wheelchairs by regulating kerbside parking, and 
prohibiting vehicles from parking on verges and footways.    

Positive impact by making the process to introduce 
Disabled Persons Parking Bays quicker and more flexible  

Gender: None 

Gender 
reassignment: 

None 

Pregnancy and 
Maternity: 

None 

Race: None 

Religion or belief: None 

Sexual Orientation: None 

Marriage and civil 
partnership: 

None 

Non statutory considerations: Please highlight what impact could there be 
on people experiencing social deprivation. 

Social deprivation: N/A 

39



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

  

What engagement or 
consultation has 
been carried out? 

Statutory public notice in local press and on street, 
directly affected by proposals. 

What could reduce 
any adverse impact 
on these groups? 

N/A 

Action Plan  

Activity  Outcome Timeframe Person 
responsible 

    

    

    

 

Lead Officer: David Pickett 

Manager: Paul Naylor 

Corporate Director: Andy Trayer 

Date completed: 09 March 2022 

 

40


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	6 Financial Report
	7 Appointments to Outside Bodies, Regulatory Panels and Other Groups
	APPOINTMENTSTOOUTSIDEBODIESAppendixA

	8 TRO, Various Roads Bishopstoke, Fair Oak and Horton Heath Area

